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PINECREST

OFFICE OF THE VILLAGE MANAGER Yocelyn Galiano Gomez, ICMA-CM

Village Manager
January 10, 2012

To The Honorable Mayor Cindy Lerner
Members of the Village Council and
Citizens of the Village of Pinecrest:

The Government Finance Officers Association recommends that local governments
publish within (6) six months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial
statements presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm
of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that recommendation, we hereby
issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the Village of Pinecrest for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2011.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the finances of the
Village of Pinecrest. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the Village of
Pinecrest has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed
both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile
sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Village of Pinecrest’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the Village of Pinecrest’s comprehensive framework of internal
controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable
in all material respects.

The Village of Pinecrest’s financial statements have been audited by Keefe, McCullough
& Co. LLP a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent
audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Village of
Pinecrest for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, are free of material misstatement.
The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amount and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that
there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Village of
Pinecrest’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, are fairly
presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

12645 Pinecrest Parkway |  Pinecrest, Florida 33156 | 3052342121 | 3052342131 | e manager@pinecrest-fl.gov



GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis
to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and
should be read in conjunction with it. The Village of Pinecrest’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The Village of Pinecrest was incorporated on March 12, 1996 pursuant to Ordinance 95-
207 adopted by the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners on November 12,
1995. The Village of Pinecrest occupies a land area of 8 square miles and serves a
population of 18,255. The Village of Pinecrest receives tax levies on real and personal
properties located within its boundaries.

The Village of Pinecrest has operated under the Council-Manager form of government
since its inception. Policy making and legislative authority are vested in a governing
council consisting of the Mayor and four council members. The Council is responsible
for among other things, adopting ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing the Village
Manager and Village Clerk. The Village Manager is responsible for carrying out the
policies and directives of the Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the
government, and for appointing the heads of various departments.

The Village of Pinecrest offers a wide range of services, including, police protection,
maintenance of roadways, parks and recreation, building, planning and zoning and
stormwater services. Certain services are provided through a legally separate fire &
rescue department, the school system and Miami-Dade County.

The Village of Pinecrest has six major departments: Police, BPZ (Building, Planning and
Zoning), Public Works, Parks & Recreation, Pinecrest Gardens and General Government.
General Government consists of the following sub-divisions; Village Council, Village
Manager, Village Clerk, Finance and Village Attorney.

The annual budget serves as a foundation for the Village of Pinecrest financial planning
and control. All departments of the Village are required to submit requests for
appropriation to the Village Manager and these requests are the starting point for
developing a proposed budget. The Village Manager then presents this proposed budget
to the Council for review. The Council is required to hold public hearings on the
proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than September 30, the close of the
Village’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department. No
department may expend in excess of amount appropriated for that department within an
individual fund without the approval of the Village Manager. The Village Manager may
make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations
between departments require the approval of the Village Council. The Village Council
approves supplemental appropriations. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this
report for the General Fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.
The General Fund, budget to actual report is presented in the required supplemental
information section of this report.
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment with which the
Village of Pinecrest operates.

Local economy. While the real estate sales and development have seen a slowdown, the
Village of Pinecrest still enjoys a favorable economic environment and local indicators
point to continued stability. This medium sized municipality is an active community of
involved citizens who take a genuine interest in the social, business, cultural and
governing aspects of their Village. The Village is comprised of an affluent residential
housing stock and several retail shopping malls. There is no industrial area in the
community.

Long-term financial planning. The Village has undertaken several capital improvement
projects as part of its five year capital improvement plan. The Village of Pinecrest has
provided funding for the development of a new strategic plan. Improvements to Pinecrest
Gardens for the renovation and upgrade of the Banyan Bowl, and the Cyprus Rooms.

Financial policies. The Village of Pinecrest has policies on; Operating Budget Policy,
Capital Improvement Policy, Debt Policy, Revenue Policy, Investment Policy, Fund
Balance Policy, Account, Auditing & Financial Policy, Audit Committee & Auditor
Selection Policy, Capital Asset Policy, Travel Policy, Purchasing Policy, Retiree Health
Care Policy and Credit Card Policy. The Revenue Policy establishes that and one time
revenues will be matched with expenditures to decrease the reliance on fund balance.

Pension. The Village of Pinecrest sponsors a defined contribution pension plan 401 (a)
with the ICMA RC (International City/County Management Association, Retirement
Corporation. Each full time employee contributes seven (7) % of his or her pay to the
plan, which is matched by a thirteen (13) % Village contribution in FY11 and 10% in
FY12..

A defined benefit plan sponsored by the Florida Retirement System (FRS) was
established for all new sworn police personnel. In addition the existing sworn police
personnel will have the option of remaining in the 401 (a) plan sponsored by the
ICMARC or the FRS plan.

Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest pension benefits can be found in Notes
3 (E) of the financial statements.

Awards and acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of
Pinecrest for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2010. This was the fifteenth year that the Village received this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published
an easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements
and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. We would like to
express our appreciation to all members of the departments who assisted and contributed
to the preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the Mayor and the Village
Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of
professionalism in the management of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances.

Respectfully submitte : _

ocelyn Galiano Gon‘gz, Gary S. Clinton,
ICMA-CM CPA, CPFO
Village Manager Finance Director
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Village of Pinecrest

Village Council

Cindy Lerner Bob Ross Joseph M. Corradino Jeff Cutler Nancy L. Harter
Mayor Vice Mayor Councilmember Councilmember Councilmember
Charter Officers

r’.

Yocelyn Galiano Gomez, ICMA-CM Guido H. Inguanzo, Jr., CMC Cynthia A. Everett
Village Manager Village Clerk Village Attorney

Administrative Personnel
Angela T. Gasca, Assistant to the Village Manager
Leo Llanos, P.E., Building Official
Gary S. Clinton, CPA, CPFO, Finance Director
Mayra R. Sauleda, Human Resources Manager
Loren C. Matthews, Parks and Recreation Director
Alana S. Perez, Pinecrest Gardens Director
Stephen R. Olmsted, AICP, Planning Director
John R. Hohensee, Police Chief
Daniel F. Moretti, Public Works Director

The Village of Pinecrest, Florida was incorporated March 12, 1996.
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i Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To The Honorable Mayor,
Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village
of Pinecrest, Florida (the “Village”) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the Village's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Village's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village, as of September 30,
2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January
10, 2012 on our consideration of the Village's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in
assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedule of funding progress, other post-employment
benefits on pages 3 through 10 and page 39, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion nor provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

6550 N. Federal Highway = Suite 410 @ Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308 # 954.771.08%6 = 954.938.9353 (F) & www.kmccpa.com



Village of Pinecrest, Florida

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Village’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section,
budgetary comparison information, other financial information and statistical section, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
budgetary comparison information and other financial information are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial
statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express
an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Keelfe, M’lc Cu([w%lt & Co., LfP

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
January 10, 2012
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2011

As management of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida, we offer the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Village of Pinecrest for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the Village of Pinecrest exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $ 116,368,211 (net assets). Of this amount, $ 11,320,687 (unrestricted net
assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The governmental total net assets decreased by $ 3,344,723. This decrease was largely a
result of depreciation.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $ 13,382,473, an increase of $ 1,152,231 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 51.4% of this total amount, $ 6,875,400 is
available for spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$ 6,875,400 or 39.2% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers.

e The Village of Pinecrest total bonded debt increased by $ 675,000 (5.4%) during the
current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Village of
Pinecrest basic financial statements. The Village of Pinecrest basic financial statements comprise
three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statement. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Village of Pinecrest’s assets
and liabilities with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
Village of Pinecrest is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some that will only result in cash
flows in the future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities). The governmental
activities of the Village of Pinecrest include general government, police, public works (including
highways), parks, and planning and building. The government-wide financial statements report on
only the Village of Pinecrest.



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2011

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
Village of Pinecrest, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village of
Pinecrest are governmental and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s
near term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village of Pinecrest maintains nine individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general, capital projects,
six special revenue funds and a debt service fund. Only the General, Transportation and Capital
Projects Funds are considered to be major funds. Data from the other funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation. Individual data for these nonmajor governmental funds are
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Village of Pinecrest adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund as well
as its other governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

Proprietary fund. The Village of Pinecrest maintains one type of proprietary fund, an
enterprise fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Village of Pinecrest uses an enterprise
fund to account for its stormwater activities.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Stormwater Fund which is considered a major fund of the Village of Pinecrest.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental
funds are presented immediately following the footnotes.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s

financial position. In the case of the Village of Pinecrest, assets exceeded liabilities by
$ 116,368,211 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2011

By far the largest portion of the Village of Pinecrest’s net assets $ 100,379,995 (86.3%)
reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village of Pinecrest uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the Village of Pinecrest’s investment in its capital assets is reported net
of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Village of Pinecrest’s Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Current and other assets $ 14,528,866 $ 13,362,487 $ 2,645,063 $ 2,394,360 $ 17,173,929 $ 15,756,847
Capital assets 109,683,378 113,804,949 4,533,896 4,625,973 114,217,274 118,430,922
Total assets 124,212,244 127,167,436 7,178,959 7,020,333 131,391,203 134,187,769
Long-term bonded debt 13,067,149 11,672,608 - - 13,067,149 11,672,608
Other liabilities 1,812,032 2,639,043 143,811 163,184 1,955,843 2,802,227
Total liabiliities 14,879,181 14,311,651 143,811 163,184 15,022,992 14,474,835
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 95,846,099 101,247,341 4,533,896 4,625,973 100,379,995 105,873,314
Restricted 4,667,529 4,098,307 - - 4,667,529 4,098,307
Unrestricted 8,819,435 7,510,137 2,501,252 2,231,176 11,320,687 9,741,313

Total net assets $ 109,333,063 $ 112,855,785 $ 7,035,148  $ 6,857,149 $ 116,368,211 $ 119,712,934

The balance of unrestricted net assets $ 11,320,687 may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest is able to report positive
balances in all three categories of net assets.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the Village of Pinecrest’s net
assets by $ 3,522,722. Key elements in the changes in net assets activity are as follows:

Village of Pinecrest’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
REVENUES:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 3,533,419 $ 2,957,869 $ 552,542 $ 449,041 $ 4,085,961 $ 3,406,910
Operating grants and
contributions 87,211 99,239 - - 87,211 99,239
Capital grants and
contributions 1,047,381 1,745,657 - 142,674 1,047,381 1,888,331
General revenues:
Taxes 12,255,238 13,008,451 - - 12,255,238 13,008,451
Other 2,253,154 2,081,706 5,853 7,411 2,259,007 2,089,117
Total revenues 19,176,403 19,892,922 558,395 599,126 19,734,798 20,492,048




VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2011

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
EXPENSES:
General government 3,414,571 4,867,768 - - 3,414,571 4,867,768
Public safety 7,558,837 7,294,203 - - 7,558,837 7,294,203
Building, planning and zoning 1,498,738 1,458,779 - - 1,498,738 1,458,779
Parks and recreation 4,143,789 3,823,458 - - 4,143,789 3,823,458
Public works 5,561,569 5,655,583 - - 5,561,569 5,655,583
Interest and other debt
service charges 521,621 660,433 - - 521,621 660,433
Stormwater - - 380,396 295,466 380,396 295,466
Total expenses 22,699,125 23,760,224 380,396 295,466 23,079,521 24,055,690
Increase (decrease)
in net assets (3,522,722) (3,867,302) 177,999 303,660 (3,344,723) (3,563,642)
NET ASSETS, October 1 112,855,785 116,723,087 6,857,149 6,553,489 119,712,934 123,276,576
NET ASSETS,
September 30 $ 109,333,063 $ 112,855,785 $ 7,035,148 $ 6,857,149 $ 116,368,211 $ 119,712,934

e Taxes, $ 12,255,258 comprised (63.9 %) of the total governmental revenues, $ 19,176,403
during the fiscal year. Most of this category is property taxes, $ 6,992,022.

e Charges for services accounted for $ 3,533,419 (18.4%) of total revenues.
e Capital grants and contributions accounted for $ 1,047,381 (5.5%) of total revenues.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities

8,000,000

7,000,000

6,000,000

5,000,000 DExpenses

4,000,000

BRevenue

3,000,000 -

2,000,000 -

1,000,000

Gen. gov Pub. saf. BPz Parks & Pub. Int -debt
rec. Works



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
September 30, 2011

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
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For the most part, decreases in expenses reflected the decline in the demand for services.
The Village of Pinecrest’s Park and Recreation Department developed additional recreational
facilities in the Community Center and expanded activity at Pinecrest Gardens. Ad valorem taxes
were held even, but there was a decrease in the electric franchise fee due to an over collection of
franchise fees due to the inclusion for fuel adjustments which were returned to the customers, but
also decreasing this revenue source.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The Village of Pinecrest used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village of Pinecrest’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Village of Pinecrest’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available
for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest’s governmental funds
(GAAP basis) reported combined ending fund balances of $ 13,382,473, an increase of
$ 1,152,231 in comparison with the prior year, $ 12,230,242. Approximately 51.4% of this total
amount - $ 6,875,400 constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is not available for new spending or is
assigned.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village of Pinecrest. At the end of the
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $ 6,875,400. As a measure
of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents 39.2% of total
General Fund expenditures including transfers, while total fund balance represents 39.7% of that
same amount.

e The fund balance of the Village of Pinecrest’s General Fund decreased by $ 635,874 during
the current fiscal year.
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e Licenses and permits increased by $ 336,661 due to a modest increase in building permit
fees.

e Intergovernmental revenue increased by $ 164,661 due to increases in grant revenues.
e Charges for services increased by $ 415,775 due to increases in culture and leisure fees.

e The largest increase in expenses was for Parks and Recreation including Pinecrest Gardens.
The $ 320,331 was due mainly to increased expanded programming.

The Debt Service Fund has no fund balance. The government transfers the exact amount
needed for both principal and interest payments each year. This year $ 1,030,000 was transferred
into the fund for principal payments, an increase of $ 185,000. This year $ 531,692 was
transferred into the fund for interest payments, a decrease of $ 125,147.

The budget to actual variances in the General Fund were Franchise Taxes ($ 337,322), due
to an adjustment for a state mandated credit for overcharges for electric fuel adjustments which
were overcharged by Florida Power and Light (FPL). The overcharge was credited to our
franchise fees to make up for two years of FPL overcharges. The charges for services increased
$ 198,530 as a result of expanded services at the Parks and Pinecrest Garden. The Police
Department tightly controlled personnel and overtime to reduce costs. In total the Police
Department was $ 496,788 under budget.

Proprietary Fund. The Stormwater Fund accounts for revenues collected for the
maintenance of the stormwater collection function in the Village. The canals and underground
pipes are maintained by the Village and there are operational costs associated with treating the
water. This year the unrestricted net assets grew from $ 2,231,176 to $ 2,501,252, an increase of
$ 270,076. This increase reflects the fact that funds are budgeted for capital improvements which
are depreciated over many years.

General Fund Budget Highlights

During the year, budgetary revenues were less than budgetary expenditures and transfers
out decreasing the fund balance by $ 635,874.

The following highlights the reason for the budget amendments in the General Fund:

° Village Council, contractual services, FPL transmission line study thru C3TS,
$ 131,000.
o Additional legal expenses. The Village is engaged in more legal suits than

anticipated during the budget process for FPL transmission lines, $ 75,000.

° The Community Center contractual services account, for additional instructors
and programming which does generate additional revenue, $ 93,000.

J Parks Department incurred $ 7,000 more in repairs and maintenance due to
termites.
o The Building Department incurred $ 80,000 in additional contractual service;

due to the increase in business permitting activity. The costs were offset by
increased revenue.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Village of Pinecrest’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
activities as of September 30, 2011, amounts to $ 109,683,378 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment,
infrastructure -roads and sidewalks, infrastructure, stormwater system and construction in
progress. The total decrease in the Village of Pinecrest’s investment in capital assets for the
current fiscal year was 3.6%.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

o Renovations and improvements at the Community Center.
o Renovations and improvements at Pinecrest Gardens.
o Town-wide road and sidewalk improvements.
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
General government $ 6,125,293 $ 6,265,136  $ - $ - $ 6,125293 $ 6,265,136
Public safety 412,683 578,138 - - 412,683 578,138
Building, planning and
zoning 16,203 8,894 - - 16,203 8,894
Parks 32,018,963 31,840,157 - - 32,018,963 31,840,157
Public works 71,110,236 75,112,624 - 71,110,236 75,112,624
Stormwater - 4,533,896 4,625,973 4,533,896 4,625,973
Total $ 109,683,378 $ _113,804949 $ _ 4,533,806 $ _ 4625973 $ _114,217,274 $ _ 118,430,922

Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest’s capital assets can be found in Note 2C.

Long-term debt. At the end of the fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest had total bonded
debt outstanding of $ 13,075,000. The total debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the
Village for which the Village is liable in the unlikely event of default.

Village of Pinecrest’s Outstanding Debt
General Obligation Bonds

Governmental Activities
2011 2010

General Obligation Bonds $ 13,075,000 $ 12,400,000

The Village of Pinecrest decreased its total debt by $ 675,000 (5.45%) during the current
fiscal year. There are three issues outstanding; Pinecrest Gardens (formerly known as the Parrot
Jungle), $ 5,130,000 which matures in FY2022, the Library/Community Center, $ 2,265,000
which matures in FY2024, and Pinecrest Gardens Improvement $ 5,680,000, which matures in
FY2030.

The last Village of Pinecrest issue, $ 5,825,000, was made in conjunction with the Florida
Municipal Loan Council on March 1, 2011. These bonds carried the following bond ratings:

e Standard & Poor’s - AAA

e Fitch - AA+.
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Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest’s long term debt can be found in Note
2E.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
e The unemployment rate for Miami-Dade County/Fort Lauderdale is currently 10.3%,
which is a decrease from a rate of 12.1% a year ago. The Village of Pinecrest residents
will have a lower unemployment rate than is reported for the county.
e Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance increased to $ 6,875,400. The
Village of Pinecrest has assigned $ 79,602 of fund balance for spending in the 2012 fiscal year
budget.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s

finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, 12645
Pinecrest Parkway, Pinecrest, Florida 33156-5931; or emailed to finance@pinecrest-fl.gov.
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Business
Governmental -Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,558,511 2,393,599 15,952,110
Receivables, net 738,589 251,464 990,053
Prepaids 1,511 - 1,511
Total current assets 14,298,611 2,645,063 16,943,674
Non-current assets:
Capital assets, not depreciated:
Land 17,437,190 - 17,437,190
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation:
Buildings 16,820,139 - 16,820,139
Improvements 4,141,315 - 4,141,315
Equipment 571,527 - 571,527
Computer software 118,235 - 118,235
Infrastructure 70,594,972 4,533,896 75,128,868
Unamortized bond issue costs 230,255 - 230,255
Total non-current assets 109,913,633 4,533,896 114,447,529
Total assets 124,212,244 7,178,959 131,391,203

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
(continued)

September 30, 2011

Business
Governmental -Type
Activities Activities Total
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
LIABILITIES:
Current:
Accounts payable and other accrued
liabilities 807,369 13,596 820,965
Accrued interest payable 142,331 - 142,331
Revenues collected in advance - 130,215 130,215
Compensated absences, due in one year 316,679 - 316,679
Bonds payable, due in one year 1,020,000 - 1,020,000
Total current liabilities 2,286,379 143,811 2,430,190
Non-current:
Unearned revenues 108,769 - 108,769
OPEB liability 381,000 - 381,000
Compensated absences, due in more
than one year 55,884 - 55,884
Bonds payable, due in more than one year 12,047,149 - 12,047,149
Total non-current liabilities 12,592,802 - 12,592,802
Total liabilities 14,879,181 143,811 15,022,992
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of
related debt 95,846,099 4,533,896 100,379,995
Restricted for:
Transportation 4,617,313 - 4,617,313
Public safety 50,216 - 50,216
Unrestricted net assets 8,819,435 2,501,252 11,320,687
Total net assets $ 109,333,063 $ 7,035,148 $ 116,368,211

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended September 30, 2011

FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS, PAGE 14

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Governmental capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Other assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in
the governmental funds:

Deferred charge on debt issuance costs, net
of accumulated amortization

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

OPEB liability

Accrued interest payable
Compensated absences
Governmental bonds payable

NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES,
PAGE 12

$ 13,382,473
$ 198,562,121
(88,878,743) 109,683,378
230,255
(381,000)
(142,331)
(372,563)
(13,067,149) (13,963,043)
$ 109,333,063

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Building, planning and zoning
Parks and recreation
Public works
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Bond issue costs

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency)
of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Bond proceeds
Bond discount
Payment to refunding escrow agent
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in
fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

Capital Other Total
General Transportation Projects Governmental ~ Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 11,271,858  $ 983,380 $ - $ - $ 12,255,238
1,779,187 - - - 1,779,187
1,635,130 408,409 636,151 210,011 2,889,701
1,554,990 - - - 1,554,990
191,230 - - 8,012 199,242
21,686 36,452 1,821 1,089 61,048
439,305 - 20,245 - 459,550
16,893,386 1,428,241 658,217 219,112 19,198,956
3,223,351 - 53,760 - 3,277,111
7,106,962 - - 172,815 7,279,777
1,501,214 - - - 1,501,214
3,482,546 - 825,333 - 4,307,879
659,485 886,378 - 12,948 1,558,811
- - - 1,030,000 1,030,000
- - - 531,692 531,692
- - 112,883 - 112,883
15,973,558 886,378 991,976 1,747,455 19,599,367
919,828 541,863 (333,759) (1,528,343) (400,411)
- - 5,825,000 - 5,825,000
- - (52,098) - (52,098)
- - (4,220,260) - (4,220,260)
- - - 1,581,692 1,581,692
(1,555,702) (25,990) - - (1,581,692)
(1,555,702) (25,990) 1,552,642 1,581,692 1,552,642
(635,874) 515,873 1,218,883 53,349 1,152,231
7,592,387 3,677,916 539,548 420,391 12,230,242
$ 6,956,513 $ 4,193,789 $§ 1,758,431 $ 473,740 $ 13,382,473

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (Page 16) $ 1,152,231

Amounts reported for governmental activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of

those assets is allocated over their estimated useful

lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is

the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the current period.

The details of the difference are as follows:

Capital Outlay $ 1,612,925
Depreciation (5,711,943)
Disposal of capital assets (22,553)
Net adjustment (4,121,571)

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, master
leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets.

The details of the difference are as follows:

Bond proceeds (5,825,000)
Bond issue costs 112,883
Bond discount 52,098
Principal payments 5,150,000
Deferred loss on refunding 100,260
Amortization of bond premium/discount 13,101
Amortization of bond issue costs (10,348)
Accrued interest 7,318
Net adjustment (399,688)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures

in governmental funds.

The details of the difference is as follows:

Other post-employment benefits (129,000)
Compensated absences (24,694)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES (Page 13) $ (3,522,722)

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
September 30, 2011

Stormwater
Fund
ASSETS:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2,393,599
Receivables 251,464
Total current assets 2,645,063
Non-current assets:
Capital assets, net 4,533,896
Total non-current assets 4,533,896
Total assets 7,178,959
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 13,596
Revenues collected in advance 130,215
Total liabilities 143,811
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 4,533,896
Unrestricted 2,501,252
Total net assets

7,035,148

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Stormwater
Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Utility fees $ 551,792
Miscellaneous income 750
Total operating revenues 552,542
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales 274,419
Depreciation 105,977
Total operating expenses 380,396
Operating income 172,146
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Interest earnings 5,853
Change in net assets 177,999
NET ASSETS, beginning 6,857,149
NET ASSETS, ending $ 7,035,148

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Stormwater
Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers and users $ 433,938
Payments to suppliers (276,781)
Miscellaneous receipts 750
Cash flows provided by operating activities 157,907
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of capital assets (13,900)
Cash flows used in capital and related financing activities (13,900)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 5,853
Cash flows provided by investing activities 5,853
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 149,860
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 2,243,739
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 2,393,599
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $ 172,146
Depreciation 105,977
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (100,843)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,362)
Increase (decrease) in revenues collected in advance (17,011)
Total adjustments (120,216)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 157,907

The accompanying notes to basic financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A

Reporting entity

The Village of Pinecrest was incorporated on March 12, 1996 pursuant to Ordinance 95-
207 adopted by the Miami Dade Board of County Commissioners on November 12, 1995.
The Village of Pinecrest occupies a land area of eight (8) square miles and serves a
population of 18,233. The Village of Pinecrest operates under a Council-Manager form of
government and provides the following services: public safety (police), public works,
building, planning and zoning, code enforcement, stormwater management, and parks and
recreation. The basic financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) as
applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental and financial reporting
principles.

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with Government Accounting
Standards, which establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting
entity. The definition of the financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that
elected officials are accountable to their constituents for their actions. One of the
objectives of financial reporting is to provide users of financial statements with a basis for
assessing the accountability of the elected officials. The financial reporting entity consists
of the Village of Pinecrest, organizations for which the Village of Pinecrest is financially
accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the Village of Pinecrest are such that exclusion would cause the reporting
entity’s financials statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Village of Pinecrest is
financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting majority of the
organization’s governing board and it is able to impose its will on that organization or there
is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on the Village of Pinecrest. Based upon the application of these
criteria, there were no organizations that met the criteria described above.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i. e., the statements of net assets and the
statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the activities of the Village
of Pinecrest. The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the proprietary fund.

Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as is used for the proprietary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Village considers revenues to be
available if they are collected within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period.  All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received by the Village.

The Village of Pinecrest reports the following major governmental funds:

o The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.

J The Transportation Fund receives grants from the State of Florida and from Miami-
Dade County to be used to account for and report resources restricted or committed
to improvement of the Village of Pinecrest roadway system. The primary sources
of revenue are intergovernmental grants for a portion of the gasoline sales tax and a
Miami-Dade County share of a 1/2 cent sales tax to be used for non-public
transportation.

o The Capital Projects Fund receives transfers from the General Fund as well as
grants and accounts for purchases of land and improvements to the parks and
buildings in the community.

The Village reports its only proprietary fund as a major fund:

o The Stormwater Fund (an enterprise fund) accounts for the stormwater control
activities of the community. Funds are received from business and residential users
and used to maintain the stormwater collection system.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989 generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private sector guidance for their business-type activities and
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Village of Pinecrest has elected not to
follow subsequent private sector guidance.
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As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions. General revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues of the Stormwater Fund are charges to business and
residential customers for stormwater system maintenance. Operating expenses report on
the costs to maintain the stormwater system, the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D. Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity.
1. Deposits and investments.

Cash and cash equivalents, which are cash and short-term investments with
maturities of three months or less, include cash on hand, and investments with the
State Board of Administration Investment Pool. Investments are reported at fair
value.

2. Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, land, rights of way, equipment, computer
software and infrastructure assets (e. g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar
items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by
the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $ 10,000
(amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at
the date of donation.

The costs or normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital
assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Capital assets of the Village are depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

o Buildings - 40 years
o Improvements - 15 years
o Equipment :
= Cars - 5 years
= Trucks - 10 years
= Equipment - 5 years
= Computer equipment — 3 years
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o Computer software — 7 years

o Infrastructure:
= Roads - 25 years
=  Stormwater system — 50 years
= Sidewalks - 20 years

Compensated absences

Village employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on
length of service and the department that the employee services.

The Village’s sick leave policy is to permit employees to accumulate earned but
unused sick pay benefits. Such leave is accrued and reported as a fund liability
when it is probable that the Village will compensate the employee in the following
fiscal year. Unused sick pay is not paid at termination.

The Village’s vacation policy is that earned vacation must be taken within one year
of the employee’s anniversary. Carryover is limited to two hundred and forty (240)
hours. Unused vacation pay, if any, is paid with the employee’s termination or
retirement. Those amounts estimated to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources from the General Fund are reported as expenditures and a fund
liability of the General Fund.

Long term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or
business-type activities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs,
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported gross of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over
the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as another financing source. Premiums received
on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance cost, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Property taxes

Property taxes for the current year were assessed and collected by Miami-Dade
County and subsequently remitted to the Village. Property taxes are assessed as of
January 1 each year and are first billed (levied) and due the following November 1.
Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county,
municipal, school board and special district property taxes are consolidated in the
offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector. The laws for
the State regulating tax assessments are also designed to assure a consistent property
valuation method statewide. State statutes permit municipalities to levy property
taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($ 10 per $ 1,000 of assessed taxable valuation).
The millage rate assessment by the Village for the year ended September 30, 2011
was 2.1040 mills.
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The tax levy of the Village is established by the Village Council prior to October 1
of each year, and the County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the
tax levy, which includes Miami-Dade County, Miami-Dade County School Board
and special taxing districts.

All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 of each
year. Each assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State
Department of Revenue for review to determine if the rolls meet all of the
appropriate requirements of State Statutes.

All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1,
each year or as soon as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by
the County Property Appraiser. Miami-Dade County mails to each property owner
on the assessment roll a notice of the taxes due and Miami-Dade County also
collects the taxes for the Village. Taxes may be paid upon receipt of such notice
from Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of four percent (4 %) if paid in
the month of November, three percent (3%) if paid in the month of December, two
percent (2%) if paid in the month of January and one percent (1%) if paid in the
month of February. Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount,
and all unpaid taxes on real and tangible personal property become delinquent and
liens are placed on April 1 of the year following the year in which taxes were
assessed. Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by Miami-Dade County
are provided for in the laws of Florida. There were no material delinquent property
taxes at September 30, 2011.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes.  Although these estimates are based on management’s
knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake in the future, they may
ultimately differ from actual results.

NOTE 2. - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and investments.

Deposits

In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, all
deposits are held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of
Florida to hold public funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for
Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to

deposit with the Treasurer or banking institution eligible collateral.

In the event of a

failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public depositories would be

responsible for covering any resulting losses.
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Investments

The Village of Pinecrest invests surplus funds in an external investment pool, the Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (the “State Pool”). The State Pool is administered
by the Florida State Board of Administration (“SBA”), who provides regulatory oversight.
The SBA has structured the State Pool into two separate pools (“Florida PRIME” and
“Fund B”).

The Florida PRIME has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirement for a
2a7-like fund. The Village of Pinecrest’s investment in the Florida PRIME is reported at
amortized cost. The fair value of the position in the pool is equal to the value of the pool
shares.

The Fund B is reported at fair value, determined by the fair value per share of the pool’s
underlying portfolio.

The Village of Pinecrest had the following investments as of September 30, 2011:

Fair
Investment Maturities Value
Florida PRIME Weighted average
days to maturity
is 38 days $ 13,408,590
Fund B Weighted average
life is 4.82 years $ 167,102
Credit Risk

The Village of Pinecrest has an investment policy that emphasis the safety of principal
while maintaining adequate liquidity to meet its needs. Investments are limited to the
highest ratings by two of the nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSRO)
- (Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s Investment Services). The Florida PRIME is rated
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s and Fund B is not rated by any nationally recognized
statistical rating agency.

Concentration Credit Risk

GASB Statement 40 requires disclosure when the percent is 5% or more in any one issuer.
External investment pools and obligations of the U.S. government are exempt from
concentration risk disclosures.

Interest Rate Risk

In accordance with our investment policy, the Village of Pinecrest manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by investing in conservative investments with the emphasis on safety
of principal.
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B.

Receivables

Receivables as of fiscal year end for the Village’s individual major and nonmajor funds, in
the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows:

Other

Capital Non-Major
Projects Governmental
General Transportation Fund Funds Stormwater Total
Receivables:
Note receivable $ 24,504 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 24,504
Intergovernmental 129,143 108,707 37,613 47,088 - 322,551
Franchise and -
utility 189,626 - - - - 189,626
Ad valorem taxes 116,639 - - - - 116,639
Other 85,269 - - - 251,464 336,733
Gross receivables 545,181 108,707 37,613 47,088 251,464 990,053
Less: allowance for
doubtful accounts
Total

receivables $ 545,181 $ 108,707 $ 37,613 $ 47,088 $ 251,464 $ 990,053

In December 2001, the Village executed a note receivable under a lease purchase
agreement with Miami-Dade County School Board for land to be used as a parking lot.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Village is entering into the final year of the
agreement and will receive $ 24,504 through December 2011. The balance of the note
receivable at September 30, 2011 of $ 24,504 is included in deferred revenues.

Future minimum lease payments reflecting principal payments on the note to be
received are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30,

2012 $ 24,504

Total deferred revenues as of September 30, 2011:

Palmetto High School property lease $ 24,504
Occupational taxes collected in advance 84,265
Total deferred revenues $ 108,769
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C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Adjustments Ending
Balance Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:
Land $ 17,437,190 $ - $ - $ - $ 17,437,190
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 17.437.190 - - - 17,437,190
Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings 18,632,661 453,318 - - 19,085,979
Improvements 5,840,936 301,046 - - 6,141,982
Equipment 2,713,744 110,671 - (75,905) 2,748,510
Computer software 114,202 20,347 - - 134,549
Infrastructure 152,286,368 727,543 - - 153,013,911
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 179,587,911 1,612,925 - (75,905) 181,124,931
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings (1,834,101) (431,739) - - (2,265,840)
Improvements (1,647,676) (352,991) - - (2,000,667)
Equipment (1,963,861) (266,474) - 53,352 (2,176,983)
Computer software - (16,314) - - (16,314)
Infrastructure (77,774,514) (4,644,425) - - (82,418.939)
Total accumulated
depreciation (83,220,152) (5,711,943) - 53,352 (88,878,743)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 96,367,759 (4,099,018) - (22,553) 92,246,188
Governmental
activities capital
assets, net $ 113,804,949 $ (4,099,018) $ - $ (22,553) $ 109,683,378
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Beginning
Balance Increases
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Infrastructure $ 7,940,476 $ 13,900
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 7,940,476 13,900
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Infrastructure (3,314,503) (105,977)
Total accumulated
depreciation (3,314,503) (105,977)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 4,625,973 (92,077)
Business-type
activities capital
assets, net $ 4,625,973 $ (92,077)

Decreases

Ending
Balance

$ 7,954,376

7,954,376

(3,420,480)

(3,420.,480)

4,533,896

$ -

$

4,533,896

Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as

follows:

Governmental activities:
General government

Public safety

Public works

Building, planning and zoning
Parks and recreation

Total depreciation expense,

governmental activities

Business type activities:
Stormwater

Total depreciation expense

business type activities
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D. Transfers

The composition of interfund operating transfers as of September 30, 2011, is as follows:

Transfers In Transfer Out Transfer Purpose

General Fund $ - $ 1,555,702 Provide debt service funds
Transportation Fund - 25,990 Provide debt service
and operational funds
Hardwire Fund 8,000 - Provide operational funds
Wireless Fund 12,000 - Provide operational funds
Debt Service 1,561,692 - Provide debt service funds
$ 1,581,692 $ 1,581,692

E. Long-term debt

Florida Municipal Loan Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, Series 2004 and Series 2011. The
Village of Pinecrest has issued three bond series. The first issue was for $ 7,740,000 for
the purchase and development of Parrot Jungle which is known as Pinecrest Gardens and
bears interest from 3.0 to 3.5%. The second issue is for the construction costs of the
Library/Community Center at Pinecrest Gardens, $ 3,075,000 and bears interest at 5.5%.
The third issue, Series 2011-A-1 was for $ 4,320,000 and refunded the Series 1999 bonds
that paid for the development of Pinecrest Park. The fourth issue, Series 2011-B-1 was for
capital improvements at Pinecrest Gardens and the Community Center. The 2011 series
bonds bear interest at rates from 2.0% to 5.0%. The principal and interest on these bonds
are payable from a pledge of non-ad valorem revenues, as defined in the bond indentures.

Year Ending Interest
September 30, Principal and fees Total
2012 $ 1,020,000 $ 574,060 $ 1,594,060
2013 1,055,000 535,165 1,590,165
2014 1,100,000 492,905 1,592,905
2015 1,140,000 448,589 1,588,589
2016 1,180,000 404,449 1,584,449
2017-2021 5,485,000 1,251,958 6,736,958
2022-2026 1,665,000 273,177 1,938,177
2027-2030 430,000 55,000 485,000
Totals 13,075,000 $ 4,035,303 17,110,303
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Changes in long-term debt of governmental activities during the year are summarized as
follows:

Balance Balance Due
September 30, September 30, Within
2010 Additions Reductions 2011 One Year
Bonds payable $ 12,400,000 $ 5,825,000 $ 5,150,000 $ 13,075,000 $ 1,020,000
Unamortized premium/
discount and loss on
refunding 157,608 (152,358) 13,101 (7,851) -
Compensated absences 347,869 494,732 470,038 372,563 316,679
Totals $ 12,905,477 $ 6,167,374 $ 5,633,139 $ 13,439,712 $ 1,336,679

Compensated absences are paid from the General Fund in the form of vacation pay.

The Village of Pinecrest refinanced the Series 1999 and replaced it with the Series 2011-B-
1 at favorable rates. The defeasement resulted in an economic gain (difference between the
present value of the old and new debt service payments) of $ 220,311.

Analysis of debt service streams is as follows:

Refunded debt:
Series 1999 Florida Municipal Loan
Revenue Bonds:
Principal payments $
Interest payments and fees

4,120,000
1,090,045

Debt stream on refunded debt 5,210,045

Refunding debt:
Series 2011 B-1 Florida Municipal Loan
Revenue Bonds:
Principal payments $
Interest payments and fees

4,320,000
704,591

5,024,591
$ 185,454

Debt stream on refunding debt
Aggregate savings in debt services
Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities as of fiscal year end for the Village’s
individual major and nonmajor funds, in the aggregate are as follows:

Capital
General Transportation Projects
Fund Fund Fund Stormwater Total
Payables:

Payroll $ 498,969 $ - $ - $ - $ 498,969
Vendors 172,149 13,480 43,095 13,596 242,320
Other 79,676 - - - 79,676
Total payable $ 750,794 $ 13,480 $ 43,095 $ 13,596 $ 820,965
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G.

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEBs)

1.

Description

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting
by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB No. 45
requires employer governments to account for and report the annual cost of other
postemployment benefits in the same manner as they do for pensions. The Village
recognizes the cost of postemployment healthcare in the year when the employee
services are received, reports the accumulated liability from prior years, and
provides information useful in assessing potential demands on the Village’s future
cash flows. Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years will be
phased in over 15 years, commencing with the 2008 liability.

Under Florida State law, the Village of Pinecrest is required to offer a continuation
of health insurance coverage to retirees at the same premium that is charged by the
insurance carrier with respect to active employees. Currently, the Village does not
have any retirees who are receiving post-employment benefits, nor plans to
contribute directly towards post-employment benefits other than making insurance
available. Therefore, for purposes of the actuarial valuation, future retirees were
assumed to contribute an amount equal to the actual premiums for health insurance
that are charged by the carrier and the actuary assumed that there will be no other
post-employment benefits provided. Based on this assumption, there is an implied
subsidy in the healthcare insurance premium for retirees because the premium
charged for retirees will be the same as the premium charged for active employees,
who are younger than retirees on average. The actuary assumed that monthly
retiree healthcare premiums at age 65 for single coverage would be $ 200 higher on
average for the HMO plan, $ 325 higher on average for the PPO plan or $ 125
higher on average for the high-deductible plan if the subsidy were not in place.
Therefore, the actuary treated either $ 200, $ 325, or $ 125 per month as the
implied subsidy at age 65 for purposes of GASB 45 for the HMO, PPO, and high-
deductible plans, respectively. The plan which is a single employer plan is not
accounted for as a trust fund and an irrevocable trust has not been established to
fund this plan. The plan does not issue a separate financial report.

Annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation

The Village’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). The
Village has engaged an actuary to calculate the ARC and related information per the
provisions of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if
paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed 15 years.
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The following table shows the components of the Village’s annual OPEB cost for
the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the Village’s net OPEB
obligation at September 30, 2011:

Annual required contribution $ 147,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation 10,000
Adjustment to annual required contribution (22,000)
Annual OPEB cost 135,000
Contributions made (6,000)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 129,000
Net OPEB obligation, October 1, 2010 252,000
Net OPEB obligation, September 30, 2011 $ 381,000

The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan
and the net OPEB obligation for 2011 and two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage
Annual of OPEB Net
Fiscal OPEB Cost OPEB
Year Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
9/30/2009 $ 63,000 0.0% $ 124,000
9/30/2010 $ 132,000 3.0% $ 252,000
9/30/2011 $ 135,000 4.4% $ 381,000

3. Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the Plan as of January 1, 2010 was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liabilitiy $ 634,000
Actuarial value of Plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 634,000
Funded ratio -
Covered payroll $ 5,712,000
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 11.1%

The actuarial valuation for the calculation of OPEB involves estimates of the value
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
required schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary
information is designed to provide multi-year trend information to show whether the
actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. However, the Village has not contributed
assets to the Plan at this time.
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H.

4.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the
valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the Village and the
plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective
and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Significant
methods and assumptions were as follows:

Valuation date January 1, 2010
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method 15-year open period;
level-dollar payment
Investment return 4.00% per annum

(includes inflation at
2.750% per annum)

Healthcare cost trend rate(s): Insurance Premiums

Select rates 10.00% for 2010 graded to
6.00% for 2018

Ultimate rate 5.0% per annum

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

As of September 30, 2011, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as
follows:

Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-
spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of
constitutional provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of
constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the
laws or regulations of other governments.

Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a
formal action of Village Council. Village Council is the highest level of decision
making authority for the Village. Commitments may be established, modified, or
rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by Village Council.

Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed but that are intended to be used or specific purposes. Under the
Village’s adopted policy, only Village Council may assign amounts for specific
purposes.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.
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As of September 30, 2011, fund balances are composed of the following:

Capital Nonmajor Total
General Transportation Projects Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Prepaids $ 1,511 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,511
Restricted:
Transportation - 4,193,789 - 423,524 4,617,313
Public safety - - - 50,216 50,216
Assigned:
Capital projects - 1,758,431 - 1,758,431
Subsequent year's budget 79,602 - - - 79,602
Unassigned Funds 6,875,400 - - - 6,875,400
Total fund balances $ 6,956,513 $ 4,193,789 $ 1,758,431 $ 473,740 $ 13,382,473

The makeup of the “Subsequent Year Appropriations” in the General Fund consists of:

Carryovers (see footnote 3F) $ 97,862
Used to balance toe 2012 budget (18,260)
Total $ 79,602

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available, the Village considers restricted funds to have been spent first.
When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund
balances are available, the Village considers amounts to have been spent first out of
committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless
Village Council has provided otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.

NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
A. Risk Management

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of or damage to and
destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters for
which the Village carries insurance through the Florida League of Cities. There were no
significant reductions in insurance coverage from the coverage in the prior year. There
were no settled claims that have exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three
years.

B. Litigation
The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. Although the
outcome of these lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the Village’s

management and legal counsel that resolution of these matters will not have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition of the Village.
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NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

C.

Contingent Liabilities

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. In the opinion of management, future
disallowances of grant expenditures, if any, would not have a material adverse effect on the
Village’s financial condition.

Interlocal Agreement

On June 17, 1997 the Village entered into an interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade
County to pass thru the Village’s share of the franchise fee on electricity collected by
Florida Power and Light. Under this agreement, the County remitted $ 986,201 to the
Village for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. This agreement will be in effect as
long as the Ordinance establishing the collection of these fees is in place.

On July 17, 2003 the Village entered into another interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade
County. Under this agreement, the County remitted $ 613,680 to the Village for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2011 for the purpose of providing transportation services within
the Village. This agreement shall remain in effect as long as the County receives net
proceeds from the 2 cent County Transit System Surtax as authorized by Miami-Dade
County Ordinance No. 02-116 pursuant to the authority of Section 212.055(1) Florida.
Statutes 2002.

On December 5, 2007, the Village entered into another interlocal agreement with Miami-
Dade County. Under this agreement, Water and Fire Project/GOB Project Number 17.11-
71200, (Countywide Water and Sewer Enhancements) 9-70593, the County remitted
$ 445,593 to the Village for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.

Pension Plans
Defined Contribution Plan

The Village of Pinecrest 401(a) Money Purchase Plan is a defined contribution plan
established by the Village to provide benefits at retirement for its employees. All full time
employees must be a member of the plan. Plan members are required to contribute 7% of
base earnings for the plan year.  The Village is required to contribute 13% of base
earnings for each participant for the plan year. Plan provisions and contribution
requirements are established and may be amended by the Village Council.

The Plan’s assets are administered by ICMA Retirement Corporation. The Village does
not exercise any control over the plan assets. Village contributions to the plan were
$ 536,340. There are current year forfeitures of $ 10,638, of which $ 4,514 was used in
lieu of Village contributions in fiscal 2011. There is a balance of $ 6,124 available for use
in fiscal year 2012. Employee contributions were $ 288,798 for the year ended September
30, 2011.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011

NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)
Defined Benefit Plan

The Village participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), a statewide cost-sharing
multiple-employer public employee retirement system (PERS), available to governmental
units within the state and administered by the State of Florida Division of Retirement,
Department of Administration. The sworn police personnel are eligible to participate in the
FRS. All rates, benefits and amendments are established by the State of Florida through its
legislative body. FRS members with six years of service are entitled to a retirement
benefit. Such benefits, payable monthly for life, are based on the percentage shown below,
times the number of years of credited service, times the average of the member’s five
highest years of earnings.

Special Risk Class - Police:
Retirement based upon 25 years of special risk service 3.00% per year.
Normal retirement age for sworn police personnel is:

Age 55 and vested,;

e Have at least 25 years of special risk creditable service;
Combined 25 years of special risk creditable service and military service and are age 52
or;

e Have at least 30 years of any creditable service.

If a member is vested but has not yet reached normal retirement age, early retirement can
be taken. The amount of the benefit will be reduced by 5.00% for each year the retirement
date precedes normal retirement age.

Contributions to the FRS are made by the Village as a percentage of covered payroll. For
the first three quarters of the fiscal year, the Village was required to pay all contributions
for participating police personnel. Effective July 1, 2011, the employee is required to
contribute 3%. The Village contribution rate to the FRS plan during the year ended
September 30, 2011 was 23.25% from October 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 and 14.10%
from July 1, 2011 through September 30, 2011. At September 30, 2011, the Village had
47 sworn police personnel participating in the FRS.

The contribution requirements of covered payroll and actual contributions made for fiscal
year 2011 and the three preceding years were as follows:

2011 2010 2009 2008*
Employer contribution requirements $ 705,639 $ 712,370 $ 530,787 N/A
Employee contribution requirements $ 28,530 $ N/A $ N/A N/A
Contributions made (100 %) $ 734,169 $ 712,370 $ 530,787 N/A
Total covered payroll $ 3,364,993 $ 3,063,960 $ 2,537,223 N/A
Percent of contributions
to total covered payroll 21.82% 23.25% 20.92% N/A

* The FRS plan started in the Village of Pinecrest in January 2009, thus prior year
information is neither relevant nor presented.

The FRS issues an annual report including the disclosures above, a statement of financial
condition, historical and statistical information and an actuarial report. A copy can be
obtained from the State of Florida, Department of Management Services, Division of
Retirement, 2639 North Monroe Street, Building C, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, or online
at www.myfrs.com.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2011
NOTE 3. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

F. Construction Commitments

There are two projects and two equipment purchases on backorder in the General Fund
which were not completed by year end and carried over. The projects are:

Greenhouse Project, Pinecrest Gardens $ 17,589
Marketing Project, Pinecrest Gardens 13,726
Pickup truck, Pinecrest Gardens 18,461
Pickup truck, Public Works 48,086

Total General Fund carryovers $ 97,862

There is one carryover in the Stormwater Fund:

Pickup Trucks, Stormwater Fund $ 48,086

G. Subsequent Event

None
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

(Unaudited)
(b) (b-a)/c
(a) Actuarial (b-a) (©) UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded (a/b) Annual Percentage
Actuarial Value Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Date of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
4/1/2008 $ - $ 228,000 $ (228,000) 0.00% $ 4,813,000 4.70%
1/1/2010 $ - $ 634,000 $ (634,000) 0.00% $ 5,712,000 11.10%
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Taxes:
Ad valorem taxes $ 7,064,700 $ 7,064,700 $ 6,992,022 $ (72,678)
Franchise fees 1,411,780 1,411,780 1,074,458 (337,322)
Utility taxes 1,781,810 1,781,810 1,937,059 155,249
Communications services tax 1,131,480 1,131,480 1,146,763 15,283
Business tax 124,590 124,590 121,556 (3,034)
Total taxes 11,514,360 11,514,360 11,271,858 (242,502)
Licenses and permits 1,305,000 1,385,000 1,779,187 394,187
Intergovernmental revenue 1,613,790 1,713,790 1,635,130 (78,660)
Charges for services 1,356,460 1,356,460 1,554,990 198,530
Fines and forfeitures 220,580 220,580 191,230 (29,350)
Miscellaneous revenues:
Interest earnings 50,000 50,000 21,686 (28,314)
PHS parking rent 91,650 91,650 91,658 8
Other miscellaneous revenues 196,200 196,200 347,647 151,447
Total miscellaneous revenues 337,850 337,850 460,991 123,141
Total revenues 16,348,040 16,528,040 16,893,386 365,346
Expenditures:
General government 3,122,500 3,328,500 3,223,351 105,149
Public safety 7,603,750 7,603,750 7,106,962 496,788
Building, planning and zoning 1,422,910 1,502,910 1,501,214 1,696
Parks and recreation 3,433,130 3,533,130 3,482,546 50,584
Public works 728,050 728,050 659,485 68,565
Total expenditures 16,310,340 16,696,340 15,973,558 722,782
Other financing sources (uses):
Appropriation of prior year's fund
balance 1,539,850 1,745,850 - (1,745,850)
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out (1,577,550) (1,577,550) (1,555,702) 21,848
Total other financing sources
(uses) (37,700) 168,300 (1,555,702) (1,724,002)
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ (635,874)  $ (635,874)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedules
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TRANSPORTATION FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Transportation taxes $ 945,000 $ 945,000 $ 983,380 $ 38,380
Intergovernmental 40,000 40,000 408,409 368,409
Interest 20,000 20,000 36,452 16,452
Total revenues 1,005,000 1,005,000 1,428,241 423,241
EXPENDITURES:
Public works 834,400 834,400 886,378 (51,978)
Total expenditures 834,400 834,400 886,378 (51,978)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures 170,600 170,600 541,863 371,263
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Appropriation of prior year's
fund balance (144,610) (144,610) - 144,610
Transfers out (25,990) (25,990) (25,990) -
Total other financing
sources (uses) (170,600) (170,600) (25,990) 144,610
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ 515,873 $ 515,873

See notes to budgetary comparison schedules
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011

NOTE 1 - BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING:

An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all of the governmental funds on a basis

consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States except for
encumbrances.

The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the

financial statements:

a.

The Village Manager submits to the Council a proposed operating and capital budget for
the ensuing year. The budget includes proposed expenditures and means of financing
them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a budget ordinance.

The Village Council, by motion, may make supplemental appropriations for the year up to
the amount of revenues in excess of those estimated. There were supplemental
appropriations in the General Fund for an additional $ 386,000 during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control devise during the year
for all of the funds.

The Village Manager is authorized to transfer part of, all or an unencumbered
appropriation within a department within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total
appropriations of any department or fund must be approved by the Village Council. The
Departments are General Government, Police, BPZ (Building, Planning and Zoning),
Public Works, and Parks and Recreation. The classification detail at which expenditures
may not legally exceed appropriations is at the department level.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. Unencumbered amounts are
reappropriated in the following year’s budget.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended. Individual type amendments
are not material in relation to the original appropriations.

NOTE 2 - RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL RESULTS

The GAAP to budgetary basis was the same for all funds.

NOTE 3 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Expenditures exceeded the budget in the following funds:

Transportation Fund $ 51,978

Police Forfeiture Fund $ 19,775
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to
expenditure for particular purposes.

Police Education Fund - This fund receives funds from judgments, donations and grants to be
used to provide training to police department personnel.

Police Forfeiture Fund - This fund receives forfeited cash and assets of individuals involved in
drug enforcement activities and must be used for police related services.

Hardwire Fund - This fund receives funds derived from a tax on land-based phone lines and is
used to fund 911 services.

Wireless Fund - This fund receives funds derived from a tax on cell phones and is used to fund
911 services.

CITT Public Transit Fund - This fund reports on the public transit funds received from a portion
of the transportation sales tax.
Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to accumulate resources and distribute principal, interest
and bond related issuance costs on long-term debt payable by the Village of Pinecrest.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
POLICE EDUCATION FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures $ 5,180 $ 5,180 $ 4,700 $ (480)
Interest 200 200 22 (178)
Total revenues 5,380 5,380 4,722 (658)
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety 10,940 10,940 7,944 2,996
Total expenditures 10,940 10,940 7,944 2,996
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (5,560) (5,560) (3,222) 2,338
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Appropriation of prior year's
fund balance 5,560 5,560 - (5,560)
Total other financing
sources 5,560 5,560 - (5,560)
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ (3,222) $ (3,222)
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
POLICE FORFEITURE FUND

Fiscal Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Fines and forfeitures $ - - $ 3,312 $ 3,312
Interest 520 520 95 (425)
Total revenues 520 520 3,407 2,887
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Public safety 42,600 42,600 62,375 (19,775)
Total expenditures 42,600 42,600 62,375 (19,775)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (42,080) (42,080) (58,968) (16,888)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Appropriation of prior year's
fund balance 42,080 42,080 - (42,080)
Total other financing
sources 42.080 42,080 - (42,080)
Net change in
fund balance $ - - $ (58,968) $ (58,968)
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HARDWIRE FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 59,100 $ 59,100 $ 63,553 $ 4,453
Interest 80 80 32 (48)
Total revenues 59,180 59,180 63,585 4,405
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety 64,600 64,600 62,040 2,560
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (5,420) (5,420) 1,545 6,965
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Appropriation of prior year's
fund balance (2,580) (2,580) - 2,580
Transfers in 8,000 8,000 8,000 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 5,420 5,420 8,000 2,580
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ 9,545 $ 9,545
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
WIRELESS FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 37,800 $ 37,800 $ 23,658 $ (14,142)
Interest 140 140 21 (119)
Total revenues 37,940 37,940 23,679 (14,261)
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety 42,730 42,730 40,456 2,274
Total expenditures 42.730 42.730 40,456 2,274
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (4,790) (4,790) (16,777) (11,987)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Appropriation of prior year's
fund balance (7,210) (7,210) - 7,210
Transfers in 12,000 12,000 12,000 -
Total other financing
sources (uses) 4,790 4,790 12,000 7,210
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ 4,777y  $ 4,777)
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CITT PUBLIC TRANSIT FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 113,450 $ 113,450 $ 122,800 $ 9,350
Interest 3,500 3,500 919 (2,581)
Total revenues 116,950 116,950 123,719 6,769
EXPENDITURES:
Public works 345,000 345,000 12,948 332,052
Total expenditures 345,000 345,000 12,948 332,052
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (228,050) (228,050) 110,771 338,821
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Appropriation of prior year's
fund balance 228,050 228,050 - (228,050)
Total other financing
sources 228.050 228,050 - (228,050)
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ 110,771 $ 110,771
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
Principal $ 949,250 $ 949,250 $ 1,030,000 $ (80,750)
Interest 634,320 634,320 531,692 102,628
Total expenditures 1,583,570 1,583,570 1,561,692 21,878
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Transfers in 1,583,570 1,583,570 1,561,692 (21,878)
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ - $ -
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Fiscal Year Ended September, 30, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovernmental $ 175,000 $ 175,000 $ 636,151 $ 461,151
Interest 10,000 10,000 1,821 (8,179)
Miscellaneous 17,000 17,000 20,245 3,245
Total revenues 202,000 202,000 658,217 456,217
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government - 129,557 53,760 75,797
Parks and recreation 1,495,000 1,635,000 825,333 809,667
Debt service:
Bond issue costs - - 112,883 (112,883)
Total expenditures 1,495,000 1,764,557 991,976 772,581
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over expenditures (1,293,000) (1,562,557) (333,759) 1,228,798
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds 1,435,000 1,435,000 5,825,000 4,390,000
Bond discount - - (52,098) (52,098)
Payment to refunding escrow agent - - (4,220,260) (4,220,260)
Appropriation of prior year's
fund balance (142,000) 127,557 - (127,557)
Total other financing
sources (uses) 1,293,000 1,562,557 1,552,642 (9,915)
Net change in
fund balance $ - $ - $ 1,218,883 $ 1,218,883
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Village of Pinecrest comprehensive annual financial report presents
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government’s
overall financial health.

Contents
Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Table 1 - Net Assets by Component

Table 2 - Changes in Net Assets

Table 3 - Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Table 4 - Fund Balances in Governmental Funds

Table 5 - Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the government’s most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.
e Table 6 - General Governmental Revenues by Function
Table 7 - Assessed Value of Taxable Property
Table 8 - Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overlapping Governments
Table 9 - Property Tax Levies and Collections
Table 10 - Principal Taxpayers

Debt Capacity:

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the government’s
current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the
future.

e Table 11 - Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type

e Table 12 - Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

e Table 13 - Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment with which the government’s financial activities take place.

e Table 14 - Demographic and Economic Statistics

e Table 15 - Principal Employers

Operating Information:

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the government’s financial report relates to the services the government provides
and the activities it performs.

e Table 16 - Full Time Equivalent Government Employees by Function

e Table 17 - Operating Indicators by Function

e Table 18 - Capital Assets by Function

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial report for the relevant year.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA Table 11
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Business
Governmental Type

Activities Activities Percentage

General Total of Per
Fiscal Obligation Outstanding Primary Population Personal Capita
Year Bonds* (2) Bonds Government (1) Income Debt
2002 15,050 - 15,050 19,078 1.54% 789
2003 14,500 - 14,500 19,286 1.47% 752
2004 17,005 - 17,005 19,317 1.72% 880
2005 16,315 - 16,315 19,460 1.64% 838
2006 15,590 - 15,590 19,530 1.60% 798
2007 14,840 - 14,840 19,382 1.50% 766
2008 14,060 - 14,060 19,454 1.41% 723
2009 13,245 - 13,245 19,491 1.33% 680
2010 12,400 - 12,400 19,411 1.25% 639
2011 13,075 - 13,075 18,255 1.40% 716

Notes:  * In thousands
(1) Fiscal years 2002 and thereafter the population as estimated by the Bureau
of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year.
(2) The Village of Pinecrest Finance Department is the source for this data.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Table

12

Per Capita

Debt

Ratio of
Assessed Bonded
General Value of Debt to

Fiscal Obligation Taxable Assessed Population
Year Bonds* (2) Property* (3) Value (D)
2002 15,050 2,072,601 0.73% 19,078
2003 14,500 2,277,452 0.64% 19,286
2004 17,005 2,499,893 0.68% 19,317
2005 16,315 2,737,815 0.60% 19,460
2006 15,590 3,098,041 0.50% 19,530
2007 14,840 3,499,456 0.42% 19,382
2008 14,060 3,942,372 0.36% 19,454
2009 13,245 3,938,373 0.34% 19,491
2010 12,400 3,722,000 0.33% 19,411
2011 13,075 3,551,445 0.37% 18,255
Notes: * In thousands

(1)  Fiscal years 2002 and thereafter the population as estimated by the Bureau

of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year.
(2)  The Village of Pinecrest Finance Department is the source for this data.
(3) Data is provided by the Miami Dade County's Property Appraiser.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA Table 13
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011
Percentage Amount Amount
Bonded Applicable Applicable Per
Debt to to Capita
Jurisdiction Outstanding Pinecrest (1) Pinecrest Pinecrest (1)
Direct
Village of Pinecrest $ 13,075,000 100.00% $ 13,075,000 716
Overlapping
School Board (2) $ 216,005,000 0.78% $ 1,615,173 83
County (3) 1,062,146,000 0.78% 7,942,177 409
$ 1,278,151,000 $ 9,557,350 492
Notes:

(1) Based upon population; Village of Pinecrest and Miami-Dade County
(2) Amounts provided by School Board are as of June 30th.
(3) Amounts provided by the Miami-Dade County Finance Department
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Fiscal
Year Population (1)
2002 19,078
2003 19,268
2004 19,317
2005 19,460
2006 19,530
2007 19,382
2008 19,454
2009 19,491
2010 19,411
2011 18,255
Notes:

ey

2)

3)

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA Table 14
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Median School
Household Household Enrollment Unemployment
Income (1) Units (1) 2) Rate (3)
107,507 6,261 6,788 7.4%
107,507 6,261 6,788 7.3%
107,507 6,261 6,796 6.1%
107,507 6,261 6,814 4.0%
107,507 6,261 6,877 3.1%
107,507 6,261 6,345 4.2%
107,507 6,261 6,095 6.6%
107,507 6,261 5,904 10.9%
107,507 6,261 5,821 12.1%
146,157 6,619 5,843 10.3%

Fiscal years 2002 through 2011 the population as estimated by the Bureau
of Economic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year.
The Miami Dade School system is the source of this data

The Department of Labor is the source of this data.
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i Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To The Honorable Mayor,
Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Pinecrest,
Florida (the “Village”) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise
the Village of Pinecrest, Florida’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
January 10, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Village's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Village’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Village’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be
material weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village’s financial statements are free
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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Village of Pinecrest, Florida

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Village management, members of the
Village Council, Federal and state awarding agencies, and the Auditor General of the State of Florida,
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

/(eeﬁe, 74”,6 eu((op%/l & Co., LLP

KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
January 10, 2012
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i Keefe, McCullough & Co., LLP

Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO VILLAGE MANAGEMENT

To The Honorable Mayor,
Village Council and Village Manager
Village of Pinecrest, Florida

We have audited the basic financial statements of Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the "Village"), as
of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated January 10,
2012.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We have issued our Independent
Auditors' Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Compliance and Other Matters.
Disclosures in that report, which are dated January 10, 2012, should be considered in conjunction
with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules
of the Auditor General, which governs the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in
the State of Florida. This letter includes the following information, which is not included in the
aforementioned auditors’ reports.

Section 10.554(1)(1)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report. There were no findings and recommendations made in the preceding
annual financial audit report.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the
provisions of Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds. In
connection with our audit, we determined that the Village complied with Section 218.415, Florida
Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(1)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address in the management
letter any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did
not have any such recommendations.

Section 10.554(1)(1)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but more than
inconsequential. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.

Section 10.554(1)(1)S., Rules of the Auditor General, provides that the auditor may, based on
professional judgment, report the following matters that have an inconsequential effect on financial
statements, considering both quantitative and qualitative factors: (1) violations of provisions of
contracts or grant agreements, fraud, illegal acts, or abuse and (2) deficiencies in internal control that
are not significant deficiencies. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings.
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Village of Pinecrest, Florida

Section 10.554(1)(1)6., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and
legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be
disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Village of
Pinecrest, Florida was incorporated by Ordinance No. 95-207 adopted by the Miami-Dade Board of
County Commissioners on November 12, 1995. The Village does not have any component units.

Section 10.554(1)(1)7.a., Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to
whether or not the local governmental entity has met one or more of the conditions described in
Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In connection
with our audit, we determined that the Village did not meet any of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes.

Section 10.554(1)(1)7.b., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether the
annual financial report for the Village for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, filed with the
Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in
agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. In
connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in agreement.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(1)7.c. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied
financial condition assessment procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the Village’s
financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made
by management and the review of financial information provided by same.

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this management letter is a public record and its
distribution is not limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
require us to indicate that this letter is intended solely for the information and use of management, and
the Florida Auditor General, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

/(eef,e, M @udou;»/t & Co., LLP
KEEFE, McCULLOUGH & CO., LLP

Fort Lauderdale, Florida
January 10, 2012
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